

ACCSA Bylaws

Last amended February 8, 2023, approved at the February 8, 2023, SAC meeting, to go to the February 22, 2023, Annual General Meeting.

Table of Contents

Bylaw 1.	General	4
Bylaw 2.	Purpose	7
Bylaw 3.	Membership	8
Members		8
Membersh	ip Fee	8
Rights of M	Members	9
Terminatio	on	9
Bylaw 4.	Meeting of Members	10
Annual Gei	neral Meeting	10
Propositio	ns	10
Special Ge	neral Meeting	10
Quorum		11
Voting Righ	hts	12
Voting by F	Proxy	12
Procedure	at Meetings	12
Votes to Go	overn	12
Secret Ball	lot	13
Bylaw 5.	Students' Association Council – SAC	14
SAC Memb	pers	14
Ex-Officio I	Members	15
SAC Memb	er Duties	15
Collectiv	ve Duties of all SAC Members	15
Presider	nt	16
Vice Pre	sident of Operations	17
Vice Pre	sident of Engagement	17
Vice Pre	sident of Diversity & Inclusion	18
Remote	Campus Chair	18
Accessib	oility Representative	19
Centre f	or Adult Learning Representative	19
Agricultı	ure & Environment Representative	19

Busine	Business Representative	
Health	Health & Human Representative	
Indiger	Indigenous Representative	
Interna	tional Representative	20
LGBT2	SQ+ Representative	20
Mature	Mature Representative	
M.I.C.A	. Representative	21
Nursin	g Representative	21
Trades	Representative	21
Bylaw 6.	Meetings of the SAC	22
Bylaw 7.	Officers	24
Bylaw 8.	Committees	25
Standing	Committees	25
Committe	ee Roles	25
Chair		25
Co-Chair		26
Minute Taker		26
Operations Committee		26
Mandate		27
Engagement Committee		28
Manda	te	28
Campaigr	ns & Action Committee	28
Mandate		29
Remote C	ampus Committee	29
Mandate		30
Executive Committee		30
Mandate		31
Internal R	Peview Committee	31
Manda	te	32
Ad-Hoc C	ommittees	32
Bylaw 9.	Elections	34
Bylaw 10.	Representative Appointments & Executive Interim Appointments	35
Bylaw 11.	Board Accountability & Removal from Office	36
Accounta	bility	36

Report Investigation		
Disciplina	ry Action	37
Appeals		37
Terminati	ion of Office	38
Bylaw 12.	Conflict of Interest	39
Disclosure	e	39
Bylaw 13.	Protection of Directors & Officers	40
Bylaw 14.	Bylaw Amendments	41
Process		41
SAC		41
Referen	ndum	41
Bylaw 15.	Corporate Office & Seal	43
Bylaw 16.	Financial Matters	44
Signing Authority		44
Auditor		44
Borrowing		44
Purchasin	ng	45
Fiscal Yea	r	45
Bylaw 17.	Policies	46

Bylaw 1. General

1.01. The following definitions shall apply to the Assiniboine Community College Students' Association, bylaws, policies and other governing documents unless the context requires otherwise:

1.02. Definitions

- **a.** "ACCSA" means the Assiniboine Community College Students' Association;
- **b.** "**Act**" means the Manitoba Corporations Act, as amended from time to time and every statute enacted to replace that legislation;
- c. "AGM" means an Annual General Meeting of the ACCSA;
- d. "Board Manual" means the manual that is distributed by the Executive Committee that outlines the SAC expectations;
- "By-election" means any election where the Members have voting rights that is not the General Election or held at the Annual General Meeting;
- f. "Bylaws" means this bylaw and all other bylaws of the ACCSA;
- **g.** "Chair" is the person responsible for running any SAC or Committee meeting and upholding Roberts Rules of Order;
- **h.** "College" means the Assiniboine Community College;
- i. "Committee" means a committee of the SAC;
- **j.** "Days" means calendar days unless the context requires otherwise;
- **k.** "Demographic Representative" means a Member of the SAC that represents a specific demographic of ACC students;
- I. "Ex-Officio Member" means an individual who, by virtue of their position or appointment, is considered a member of the SAC or Committee, and shall receive all materials distributed to these groups, and participate in all open and closed sessions of the meetings. For further clarity, Ex-Officio Members do not have the ability to vote at meetings, are not considered for a quorum, and cannot attend or participate during in-camera sessions of meetings;

- **m.** "General Election" means the principal elections held by the ACCSA in which the Members elect SAC members;
- **n.** "Executive" means the elected or appointed SAC member of the President, Vice President of Operations, Vice President of Engagement or the Vice President of Campaigns and Action;
- "Executive Director" means the employee hired by and reporting to the SAC to manage the operations and staff members of the ACCSA, and is an Officer of the organization;
- **p.** "Member" means an individual who is admitted as an ACCSA Member according to the criteria as set out in section 3.01;
- **q.** "Officer" means those positions designated as Officers as set out in Bylaw 7;
- **r.** "Quorum" means the number of individuals who must be present for business to be transacted;
- **s.** "Remote Campus" means any ACC campus that is not located in Brandon, MB including all contract sites, rural rotating sites and satellite campuses';
- **t.** "Remote Campus Chair" means the elected or appointed SAC member that is the Remote Campus Chair;
- "SAC" means the Students' Association Council, which is the Board of Directors of the ACCSA;
- v. "School Representative" Means a member of the SAC that represents students within a specific school of study;
- w. "Simple majority" means a vote supported by fifty (50) percent plus one (1) of those voting;
- **x.** "**Semester**" means the three (3) academic time periods at Assiniboine Community College (Fall, Winter and Spring);
- y. "SGM" means a Special General Meeting of the ACCSA;
- **z.** "**Student**" means those individuals defined as such by the College;
- **aa.** "**Student Activity Fees**" means the fees that are collected from students in accordance with the Act; and

- **bb.** "Two-thirds majority" means a vote supported by two-thirds (2/3) of those voting.
- **1.1.** Words importing the singular number include the plural and vice versa.
- **1.2.** Words importing gender include all genders.
- **1.3.** Where a given number of days' notice is required to be given, the day of posting of the notice shall not, unless it is otherwise provided, be counted in such number of days.
- **1.4.** The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Bylaw shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Bylaws; and
- **1.5.** If any of the provisions contained in the Bylaws are inconsistent with those contained in the articles or the Act, the provisions contained in the articles or the Act, as the case may be, shall prevail.

Bylaw 2. Purpose

- 2.01. The mission of the ACCSA is to holistically support & engage students through services and programs that are reflective of a diverse & growing student community. The ACCSA advocates for transparent governance, student rights, self-expression, and the development of student leaders. The ACCSA aspires to be an inclusive community that empowers students to achieve excellence through support & experiences. In order to achieve these objectives, the ACCSA will strive to:
 - **a.** Represent the student community with one voice;
 - **b.** Support student needs and offer guidance;
 - c. Promote student success through teamwork and involvement; and
 - **d.** Provide a unique student experience.

Bylaw 3. Membership

Members

- **3.01.** The Membership of the ACCSA shall consist of all students who have paid their membership fees and are registered at Assiniboine Community College, taking a minimum of one (1) course in any of the following locations or programs:
 - a. Victoria Avenue East Campus;
 - **b.** First Street North Campus:
 - **c.** Base Budget (full & part-time);
 - **d.** Apprentice;
 - e. Parkland Campus;
 - f. Winnipeg Campus
 - g. Southport Campus;
 - **h.** Distance Education;
 - i. Continuing Education;
 - **j.** Rotating sites;
 - **k.** Contract sites; and
 - **l.** Other new sites, campuses, or programs as developed by the College; to be reviewed annually.

Membership Fee

3.02. Each Member shall pay the Student's Association Fees charged by the ACCSA for their current period. Any member in arrears of paying their Student Activity Fees shall have their membership right automatically suspended until all outstanding fees are paid in full.

Rights of Members

- **3.03.** The following rights shall be limited to members:
 - **a.** The right to vote at general meetings;
 - **b.** The right to vote in elections and referenda;
 - **c.** The right to seek elected office;
 - d. The right to nominate candidates for elected office; and
 - **e.** The right to petition a request for a Special General Meeting as set out in section 4.04.

Termination

- **3.04.** The interest of a Member shall not be transferable and shall terminate when they cease to be a Member of the ACCSA.

 Membership in the ACCSA shall be terminated upon:
 - **a.** Graduation from the college;
 - **b.** Withdrawal, suspension or expulsion from the College;
 - **c.** Expulsion from the ACCSA upon a majority vote of the SAC, for failure to follow ACCSA bylaws and policies; or
 - **d.** Death.

Bylaw 4. Meeting of Members

Annual General Meeting

- **4.01.** The ACCSA AGM shall be held each year at or in the vicinity of the College on a date and time fixed by the SAC. The purpose of the AGM shall be to:
 - **a.** Read the minutes of the previous AGM and any subsequent special general meetings;
 - **b.** Receive and approve the audited financial statements;
 - **c.** Confirm the auditor for the coming year;
 - **d.** Receive the budget for the upcoming fiscal year;
 - e. Receive reports from the SAC; and
 - **f.** Address any special business that the SAC determines may be properly brought before the meeting.

Propositions

- **4.02.** Members may propose matters to be raised and discussed during the AGM, and this proposal shall be included in the notice to Members as set out in section 4.05. Proposals must:
 - a. Be submitted to the ACCSA at least sixty (60) days before the AGM; and
 - **b.** Relate in a significant way to the activities or affairs of the ACCSA.

Special General Meeting

- **4.03.** The SAC may convene a Special General meeting of the Members at any time with proper notice as set out in section 4.06 stating the business to be brought before the meeting.
- **4.04.** Ten (10) percent of the Members of the ACCSA may, by petition, request a Special General meeting of the Members;
 - **a.** The petition shall include the resolutions to be discussed at the Special General meeting;

- **b.** Upon receipt and validation of the signatures, the SAC shall within twenty-one (21) days of receipt of the petition cause such meeting to be held; and
- **c.** The same notices shall be required as set out in section 4.06.
- **4.05.** ACCSA Members and the Auditor shall be notified of the date, time, place and special business of the AGM at least ten (10) but not more than fifty (50) days prior to the meeting. Notice shall be provided in the form of public notices posted:
 - **a.** In appropriate locations across campuses;
 - **b.** On the ACCSA website; and
 - **c.** Through other effective mechanisms appropriate in a given year.
- **4.06.** ACCSA Members shall be notified of the date, time, place, and reason for a Special General meeting at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting. Notice shall be provided in the form of public notices posted:
 - **a.** In appropriate locations across campuses;
 - **b.** On the ACCSA website; and
 - **c.** Through other effective mechanisms appropriate in a given year.
- **4.07.** No minor immaterial error or omission in giving the notice of any meetings of the Members shall invalidate such meeting, provided that notice would reasonably come to the attention of most students at the College.
- **4.08.** The Chair for the AGM shall be the Chair of the SAC and shall not lose their right to vote.
- **4.09.** The recording secretary for the AGM shall be nominated from amongst the SAC and shall not lose their right to vote.
 - **a.** The SAC may choose to nominate an Ex-Officio Director of the SAC as secretary for the AGM.

Quorum

4.10. Quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of Members shall be twenty (20) Members.

Voting Rights

4.11. At a meeting of Members, each Member of the ACCSA shall be entitled to one (1) vote. The Membership status of an individual shall be established by the presentation of a valid student identity card or by other means as may be determined by the SAC.

Voting by Proxy

- **4.12.** Members may vote by proxy on matters at the AGM or Special General meeting, with the following conditions:
 - **a.** A Member shall be permitted to hold only one (1) proxy vote;
 - **b.** Voting actions must be taken in the interests of the ACCSA and its Members and consistent with the ACCSA conflict of interest guidelines as set out in section 12;
 - **c.** A proxy form shall be sent out with the notice of the meeting;
 - **d.** The proxy form shall provide means whereby the person whose proxy is solicited is afforded an opportunity to specify that the proxy holder shall vote in accordance with such Member's choice in each matter or group of related matters identified in the notice of meeting;
 - **e.** The proxy may confer discretionary authority with respect to matters as to which a choice is not so specified or with respect to amendments or variations to matters identified in the notice of the meeting;
 - **f.** Proxies must be filed with the AGM Secretary no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting for which the proxy has been solicited and shall be filed in such manner as the SAC may determine; and
 - **g.** Proxy ballots will be counted by the meeting scrutineers.

Procedure at Meetings

4.13. The procedures at the AGM and Special General meetings shall be governed by Robert's Rules of Order.

Votes to Govern

4.14. Unless otherwise required by this Bylaw, ACCSA policies or by law, all questions proposed for the consideration of Members at a meeting shall be determined by a Simple majority of the votes cast.

- **4.15.** In the event of a tie, the motion shall fail;
- **4.16.** Any question at a meeting of Members shall be decided by a show of hands unless a secret ballot is required or demanded;

Secret Ballot

- **4.17.** Any Member present at a meeting may request a matter be dealt with by a secret ballot. The Members present will, by a show of hands, decide whether voting shall be done by secret ballot; and
 - **a.** The Chair of the AGM or SGM shall ensure that the secret ballot is conducted in a manner that ensures confidentiality while still maintaining the integrity of the voting process.

Bylaw 5. Students' Association Council – SAC

SAC Members

- **5.01.** The SAC shall serve as the ACCSA Board of Directors and shall supervise the management of all the activities and affairs of the ACCSA and be accountable in this duty to its Members.
- **5.02.** The SAC shall consist of the following eighteen (17) members:
 - **a.** President;
 - **b.** Vice President of Engagement;
 - c. Vice President of Operations;
 - **d.** Vice President of Diversity & Inclusion;
 - e. Remote Campus Chair;
 - **f.** Accessibility Representative;
 - **g.** Centre for Adult Learning Representative;
 - **h.** Agriculture & Environment Representative;
 - i. Business Representative;
 - j. Health & Human Representative;
 - k. Indigenous Representative;
 - **l.** International Representative;
 - **m.** LGBT2SQ+ Representative;
 - **n.** Mature Representative;
 - o. M.I.C.A. Representative;
 - **p.** Nursing Representative; and
 - **q.** Trades Representative.
- **5.03.** All SAC members, except for Ex-Officio Members, shall be;

- a. Members of the ACCSA; and
- **b.** In good standing with the College and the ACCSA.
- **5.04.** Term of office for all SAC Members shall run from May 1 to the following April 30;
- **5.05.** SAC members shall receive honoraria as set out in the ACCSA Finance Policy; and
- **5.06.** SAC members may be reimbursed for expenses properly incurred by them in performing their duties on behalf of the ACCSA.

Ex-Officio Members

- **5.07.** In addition to the members outlined in section 5.02., the SAC shall also include the following Ex-Officio Members:
 - **a.** The Executive Director or designate;
 - **b.** The ACCSA legal counsel; and
 - **c.** One (1) College representative.

SAC Member Duties

Collective Duties of all SAC Members

- **5.08.** All SAC Members shall:
 - **a.** Attend all scheduled SAC meetings, and any meetings of Committees that they are appointed to;
 - **b.** Maintain a professional communication standard during all SAC-related activities;
 - **c.** Act with diligence, fiduciary responsibility, honesty, and good faith in the best interest of ACCSA at all times;
 - **d.** Read, understand, and abide by all Bylaws, Policies, and Resolutions of the ACCSA, including the ACCSA Board Manual;
 - **e.** Complete any required training as recommended by the Executive Committee or SAC to ensure efficient participation in the SAC, including but not limited to:
 - i. Board Orientation as outlined in the ACCSA Board Manual:

- ii. Training on relevant software programs;
- iii. Confidentiality and Communication Training; and
- **iv.** Other training as determined from time to time will ensure high-quality performance.
- **f.** Join, and actively participate in, a minimum of one standing Committee on the ACCSA;
- **g.** At the end of their term, submit a year-end report outlining achievements, challenges, and recommendations specific to their position; and
- **h.** Any other duties as determined from time to time by the SAC through a Resolution or Special Resolution.

President

- **5.09.** In addition to the duties outlined in Section 5.08. of these Bylaws, the President shall:
 - **a.** Chair the SAC in accordance with these Bylaws;
 - **b.** Chair the Executive Committee in accordance with these Bylaws;
 - **c.** Chair all AGM and SGM meetings in accordance with these Bylaws;
 - **d.** Serve as an Ex-Officio Member on all standing and ad-hoc committees, unless otherwise stipulated in these Bylaws;
 - **e.** Serve as a signing authority for the ACCSA;
 - **f.** Serve as the official spokesperson for the SAC and the ACCSA, or delegate the responsibility of spokesperson to another SAC Member or the Executive Director as required and when appropriate;
 - **g.** Oversee any ad-hoc or standing student appointment processes within the ACCSA, and liaise with all Committee Chairs to ensure the prompt filling of vacant seats;
 - **h.** Work with all internal and external stakeholders of the ACCSA, and ensure the adequate representation of all its Members;
 - In conjunction with the Executive Director, ensure that the operations of the organization align with the strategic goals and mandate of the SAC; and

j. Proactively review the performance of all SAC Members and make recommendations to individual members of the SAC as required to ensure the efficacy of the SAC as a whole.

Vice President of Operations

- **5.10.** In addition to the duties outlined in Section 5.08. of these Bylaws, the Vice President Governance shall:
 - **a.** Act as interim-President if the President position is vacant, or the President is otherwise unable to perform their duties;
 - **b.** Chair the Operations Committee in accordance with these Bylaws;
 - **c.** Ensure that the SAC is informed about any issues affecting Members that are related to student fees, increasing tuition, or stoppage of services;
 - **d.** Ensure that all SAC members are aware of the Act, ACCSA Bylaws, Policies, and other governing documentation as is required from time to time;
 - **e.** Create and enforce an effective reporting structure for all governance activities of the ACCSA, including individual SAC Member reports, Committee reports, and annual reports;
 - **f.** In conjunction with the Executive Director, oversee the financial and legal obligations of the ACCSA; and
 - **g.** Serve as a signing authority for the ACCSA.

Vice President of Engagement

- **5.11.** In addition to the duties outlined in Section 5.08. of these Bylaws, the Vice President of Engagement shall:
 - **a.** Ensure the overall engagement of Members, as well as identifying and resolving any issues or barriers that prevent engagement;
 - **b.** Chair the Engagement Committee;
 - **c.** Liaise with student clubs and other student groups on campus, and handle any concerns or issues related to the clubs program;
 - **d.** Ensure the fair and equal prioritization of ACCSA resources and efforts amongst all campuses of the ACCSA;

- e. Oversee the overall events and activities programming of the ACCSA; and
- **f.** Oversee the overall communications of the ACCSA to its Members.

Vice President of Diversity & Inclusion

- **5.12.** In addition to the duties outlined in Section 5.08. of these Bylaws, the Vice President of Diversity & Inclusion shall:
 - **a.** Be responsible for promoting inclusion and celebrating diversity in all aspects of the ACCSA and the College community;
 - **b.** Chair the Campaigns & Action Committee;
 - Ensure that the SAC is informed about any equity, social justice, or larger community issues affecting Members;
 - **d.** Liaise with ACCSA Advocacy Services to identify systemic issues and barriers within the College environment;
 - **e.** Liaise with College officials as required to address any systemic issues or barriers within the College environment;
 - **f.** Ensure that all ACCSA programming prioritizes safety and inclusion whenever possible; and
 - **g.** Liaise with other SAC Members to identify learning opportunities for the SAC that provide a greater understanding and awareness of the diversity of the larger community.

Remote Campus Chair

- **5.13.** In addition to the duties outlined in Section 5.08. of these Bylaws, the Remote Campus Chair shall:
 - a. Be responsible for representing, and advocating on behalf of, all Members who are considered students attending the campuses or enrolled in programming based out of Dauphin, Winnipeg, Southport, and all rotational and/or contract sites of Assiniboine Community College;
 - **b.** Chair the Remote Campus Committee;
 - **c.** In partnership with the Executive Director or designate, and any associated college liaisons, recruit, and appoint Remote Campus Committee Representatives; and

d. Ensure that the SAC is informed about any issues affecting Members, specifically those relating to the above-noted campuses, their programming, and their student needs.

Accessibility Representative

- **5.14.** In addition to the duties outlined in Section 5.08. of these Bylaws, the Accessibility, Health & Wellness Representative shall:
 - **a.** Represent, and advocate on behalf of, all Members living with accessibility, health or wellness needs to the SAC and throughout the College Community; and
 - **b.** Ensure that the SAC is informed about any issues affecting Members, specifically those relating to accessibility, health, and wellness within the College environment.

Centre for Adult Learning Representative

- **5.15.** In addition to the duties outlined in Section 5.08. of these Bylaws, the Centre for Adult Learning Representative shall:
 - **a.** Represent, and advocate on behalf of, all Members who are considered students of the Centre for Adult Learning; and
 - **b.** Ensure that the SAC is informed about any issues affecting Members, specifically those relating to the Centre for Adult Learning and its programming.

Agriculture & Environment Representative

- **5.16.** In addition to the duties outlined in Section 5.08. of these Bylaws, the Agriculture & Environment shall:
 - **a.** Represent, and advocate on behalf of, all Members who are considered students of the School of Agriculture & Environment; and
 - **b.** Ensure that the SAC is informed about any issues affecting Members, specifically those relating to the School of Agriculture & Environment and its programming.

Business Representative

5.17. In addition to the duties outlined in Section 5.08. of these Bylaws, the Business Representative shall:

- **a.** Represent, and advocate on behalf of, all Members who are considered students of the School of Business; and
- **b.** Ensure that the SAC is informed about any issues affecting Members, specifically those relating to the School of Business and its programming.

Health & Human Representative

- **5.18.** In addition to the duties outlined in Section 5.08. of these Bylaws, the Health & Human Representative shall:
 - **a.** Represent, and advocate on behalf of, all Members who are considered students of the School of Health & Human Services; and
 - **b.** Ensure that the SAC is informed about any issues affecting Members, specifically those relating to the School of Health & Human Services and its programming.

Indigenous Representative

- **5.19.** In addition to the duties outlined in Section 5.08. of these Bylaws, the Indigenous Representative shall:
 - **a.** Represent, and advocate on behalf of, all indigenous Members to the SAC and throughout the College Community; and
 - **b.** Ensure that the SAC is informed about any issues affecting Members, specifically those relating to indigenous students within the College environment.

International Representative

- **5.20.** In addition to the duties outlined in Section 5.08. of these Bylaws, the International Representative shall:
 - **a.** Represent, and advocate on behalf of, all international Members of the SAC and throughout the College Community; and
 - **b.** Ensure that the SAC is informed about any issues affecting Members, specifically those relating to international students within the College environment.

LGBT2SQ+ Representative

5.21. In addition to the duties outlined in Section 5.08. of these Bylaws, the LGBT2SQ+ Representative shall:

- **a.** Represent, and advocate on behalf of, all LGBT2SQ+ Members to the SAC and throughout the College Community; and
- **b.** Ensure that the SAC is informed about any issues affecting Members, specifically those relating to students identifying as LGBT2SQ+ within the College environment.

Mature Representative

- **5.01.** In addition to the duties outlined in Section 5.08. of these Bylaws, the Mature Representative shall:
 - **a.** Represent, and advocate on behalf of, all mature Members of the SAC and throughout the College Community; and
 - **b.** Ensure that the SAC is informed about any issues affecting Members, specifically issues related to mature students, childcare, and non-sequential students within the College environment.

M.I.C.A. Representative

- **5.02.** In addition to the duties outlined in Section 5.08. of these Bylaws, the M.I.C.A. Representative shall:
 - **a.** Represent, and advocate on behalf of, all Members who are considered students of M.I.C.A.; and
 - **b.** Ensure that the SAC is informed about any issues affecting Members, specifically those relating to M.I.C.A and its programming.

Nursing Representative

- **5.03.** In addition to the duties outlined in Section 5.08. of these Bylaws, the Nursing Representative shall:
 - **a.** Represent, and advocate on behalf of, all Members who are considered students of the School of Nursing; and
 - **b.** Ensure that the SAC is informed about any issues affecting Members, specifically those relating to the School of Nursing and its programming.

Trades Representative

5.04. In addition to the duties outlined in Section 5.08. of these Bylaws, the Trades Representative shall:

- **a.** Represent, and advocate on behalf of, all Members who are considered students of the School of Trades; and
- **b.** Ensure that the SAC is informed about any issues affecting Members, specifically those relating to the School of Trades and its programming.

Bylaw 6. Meetings of the SAC

- **6.01.** SAC meetings shall be held at the head office of the ACCSA or any other place at the College or elsewhere in the Province of Manitoba upon resolution of the SAC;
 - **a.** For further clarity, meetings of the SAC may be held virtually, through an appropriate medium, as determined by the Chair.
- **6.02.** SAC members that represent the remote and/or rotational campuses may attend virtually;
- **6.03.** The SAC shall meet at least two (2) times every month;
- **6.04.** The Chair of the SAC shall be the President unless otherwise decided by the SAC by resolution;
 - **a.** In the absence of the President, the Vice President of Operations shall preside at SAC meetings as Chair; and
 - **b.** In the absence of both the President and Vice President of Operations, the SAC shall designate the Chair from amongst the remaining SAC Members.
- **6.05.** Notice of SAC meetings shall be provided at least seven (7) days in advance of the meeting;
 - **a.** Notice shall be provided via email or orally if necessary;
 - **b.** An official meeting agenda shall be forwarded to all SAC members at least three (3) days in advance of the meeting; and
 - **c.** An official meeting agenda shall be forwarded to all SAC ex-officio members at least three (3) days in advance of the meeting.
- **6.06.** The Chair of the SAC shall be responsible for calling and presiding at SAC meetings;

- **6.07.** Each SAC member has one vote;
- **6.08.** Questions arising at any SAC meeting shall be decided by a Simple majority of votes;
- **6.09.** Items determined to be special resolutions by the SAC shall require a seventy-five percent (75%) majority vote to pass;
- **6.10.** In case of an equality of votes, the Chair shall not have a second or casting vote;
- **6.11.** Quorum of the SAC for the purpose of transacting business shall be a Simple majority of SAC members;
- **6.12.** An ACCSA staff member shall serve as the Recording Secretary;
 - **a.** The Recording Secretary shall be responsible for recording the minutes of all SAC Meetings.
- **6.13.** All meetings of the SAC shall be open to Members of the ACCSA;
- **6.14.** Guests may be invited to SAC meetings at the discretion of the SAC;
- **6.15.** Where a matter is determined by the SAC to be confidential, discussion and voting on the matter may be held in-camera and attended by SAC members only; and
- **6.16.** If a Simple majority of SAC members consent, a SAC member may participate in a meeting of the SAC by telephonic or electronic means that permits all participants to communicate adequately with each other during the meeting.
 - **a.** A SAC member participating by such means is deemed to be present at that meeting.

Bylaw 7. Officers

- **7.01.** Officers shall be ultimately responsible for the operations of the ACCSA, including the administration and compliance with all legal, financial, and operational matters.
- **7.02.** The Officers of the ACCSA shall be:
 - a. President;
 - b. Vice President of Operations; and
 - **c.** Acting Executive Director.

Bylaw 8. Committees

Standing Committees

- **8.01.** The following Committees shall be considered Standing Committees of the SAC, and shall be enacted yearly as per these Bylaws:
 - a. Operations Committee;
 - **b.** Engagement Committee;
 - c. Campaigns & Action Committee;
 - **d.** Remote Campus Committee;
 - e. Executive Committee; and
 - Internal Review Committee.
- **8.02.** All SAC appointments to Standing Committees shall be made at the first full meeting of the SAC each term.
 - **a.** Committee Chairs are responsible for notifying the President and SAC of any recently vacated positions as soon as they are realized, and the SAC shall make an interim appointment as soon as is practicable.

Committee Roles

- **8.03.** The following roles shall be appointed at the first Committee meeting of each term unless their appointment process is otherwise defined through these Bylaws:
 - a. Committee Chair;
 - **b.** Committee Co-Chair; and
 - c. Committee Minute Taker.

Chair

- **8.04.** The Committee Chair for each respective Committee shall:
 - **a.** Lead the Committee;
 - **b.** Call Committee meetings;

- **c.** Set Committee meeting agendas;
- a. Chair Committee meetings; and
- **b.** ensure that the Committee achieves its mandate and goals.

Co-Chair

- **8.05.** The Committee Co-Chair for each respective Committee shall:
 - **a.** Act in place of the Committee Chair during times when the Committee Chair is not available.

Minute Taker

- **8.06.** The Committee Minute Taker for each respective Committee shall;
 - **a.** Prepare minute documents for each Committee meeting, and provide them to the Committee Chair prior to the subsequent meeting; and
 - **b.** Forward any recommendations and other required materials for the SAC to the SAC Chair.
- **8.07.** Quorum for all Committee meetings shall be three (3) Committee members, or a simple majority of all Committee members, whichever is greater;
- **8.08.** Notice of Committee meetings shall be given seven (7) days in advance of the meeting by the Committee Chair;
- **8.09.** An official Committee meeting agenda and all associated materials shall be forwarded to all Committee members by the Committee Chair at least three (3) days in advance of the Committee meeting; and
- **8.10.** Unless otherwise stated in these Bylaws, Committees shall strive to meet a minimum of once a month for the purpose of fulfilling their mandates.

Operations Committee

- **8.11.** The Operations Committee shall be comprised of:
 - **a.** The Vice President of Operations, as Committee Chair;
 - **b.** A minimum of 2, to a maximum of 4, Members of the SAC, as appointed by the SAC;

- **c.** A minimum of 0 Members of the ACCSA, as appointed by the Vice President of Operations;
- **d.** The Executive Director or designate as an Ex-Officio Member; and
- e. The President as an Ex-Officio Member.

- **8.12.** The mandate of the Operations Committee shall be to oversee the financial operations of the ACCSA, review the governing documents of the ACCSA, identify gaps in the governing documentation of the ACCSA, and provide recommendations to the SAC on changes, additions, and removal of these documents as required;
- **8.13.** In addition to complying with the mandate of the Committee, the Bylaw and Policy Review Committee shall;
 - **a.** Review yearly the Bylaws and make recommendations as required to ensure the ACCSA is governed appropriately and in compliance with all legislation and agreements in effect;
 - **b.** Review ACCSA Policies as required to ensure they are updated and relevant to the ACCSA and make recommendations as required to the SAC;
 - **c.** Propose new Policies or Bylaw language as required to the SAC to allow for the smooth operations of the ACCSA;
 - **d.** Review contracts and other documents as needed to ensure compliance with all relevant ACCSA Bylaws and Policies;
 - **e.** Review the monthly financial bank statements as prepared and reconciled by the Executive Director or designate;
 - **f.** Review the monthly credit card statements of all credit cards issued by the ACCSA, as prepared and reconciled by the Executive Director or designate;
 - **g.** In conjunction with ACCSA staff members, prepare a draft of the annual budget that will be presented to the SAC for approval;
 - **h.** Review on a regular basis all revenues, expenditures, liabilities, and assets of the ACCSA, and identify any irregularities from the approved annual budget; and

i. Identify ways in which to increase the transparency and accountability of the ACCSA's financial operations.

Engagement Committee

- **8.14.** The Engagement Committee shall be comprised of:
 - **a.** The Vice President of Engagement, as Committee Chair;
 - **b.** A minimum of 2, to a maximum of 4, Members of the SAC, as appointed by the SAC;
 - **c.** A minimum of 0 Members of the ACCSA, as appointed by the Vice President of Engagement;
 - **d.** The Executive Director or designate as an Ex-Officio Member; and
 - **e.** The President as an Ex-Officio Member.

Mandate

- **8.15.** The mandate of the Engagement Committee shall be to ensure that all Members are adequately engaged and aware of the services and activities of the ACCSA and to identify new or enhanced engagement opportunities throughout the year; and
- **8.16.** In addition to complying with the mandate of the Committee, the Engagement Committee shall:
 - **a.** Review and evaluate the success of previous ACCSA engagement activities, such as events, communications, etc., and make appropriate recommendations for future engagement activities;
 - **b.** Review approved Club Applications that have been received by the ACCSA;
 - **c.** Review and approve any Club funding requests that are received by the ACCSA; and
 - **d.** Review the overall efforts of the Clubs program, and identify ways to increase participation.

Campaigns & Action Committee

8.17. The Campaigns & Action Committee shall be comprised of:

- **a.** The Vice President of Diversity & Inclusion, as Committee Chair;
- **b.** A minimum of 2, to a maximum of 4, Members of the SAC, as appointed by the SAC;
- **c.** A minimum of 0 Members of the ACCSA, as appointed by the Vice President of Diversity & Inclusion;
- **d.** The Executive Director or designate as an Ex-Officio Member; and
- e. The President as an Ex-Officio Member.

- **8.18.** The mandate of the Campaigns & Action Committee shall be to research, organize, and implement campaigns that are related to, or bring awareness to issues that impact and affect students and the larger community;
- **8.19.** In addition to complying with the mandate of the Committee, the Campaigns & Action Committee shall;
 - **a.** Make recommendations to the SAC for campaigns or activities which further the awareness of a particular issue, including but not limited to the following areas:
 - i. Social equity issues;
 - ii. Human rights issues;
 - iii. Food security issues;
 - iv. College community issues;
 - v. Political issues; and
 - vi. Education policy issues.
 - **b.** Raise awareness of social justice issues and provide guidance to ACCSA staff members to provide adequate and appropriate programming related to ongoing campaigns and lobbying efforts; and
 - **c.** Partner with the College and other external organizations as required to organize joint campaigns and activities.

Remote Campus Committee

- **8.20.** The Remote Campus Committee shall be comprised of:
 - The Remote Campus Chair, as Committee Chair;

- **b.** A student representative from each Satellite Campus, Rural Rotating Site, and/or contract site of the college, including; Parkland, Winnipeg, Southport, and each of the Rural Rotating Sites and/or contract sites of the college, as appointed by the Remote Campus Chair.
- **c.** The Executive Director or designate as an Ex-Officio Member;
- **d.** One (1) College liaison from each of the Winnipeg, Parkland, Rural Rotating Sites and Contract Sites as an Ex-Officio Member(s); and
- e. The President as an Ex-Officio Member.

- **8.21.** The mandate of the Remote Campus Committee shall be to discuss issues of importance to the students of the Satellite Campuses, Rural Rotating sites and contract sites of the college, and to create events and programming as desired by the students of the same; and
- **8.22.** In addition to complying with the mandate of the Committee, the Remote Campus Committee shall:
 - **a.** Approve events/activities, and related expenses, for each location within the given budgets as outlined in the Finance Policy;
 - **b.** Discuss issues that directly or indirectly impact students of the Satellite Campuses, Rural Rotating Sites, and contract sites; and
 - **c.** Provide recommendations to the Remote Campus Chair, to bring forth to the SAC.

Executive Committee

- **8.23.** The Executive Committee shall be comprised of:
 - **a.** The President, as Chair;
 - **b.** The Vice President of Operations;
 - **c.** The Vice President of Diversity & Inclusion;
 - **d.** The Vice President of Engagement;
 - e. The Remote Campus Chair; and
 - **f.** The Executive Director as an Ex-Officio Member.

- **8.24.** The mandate of the Executive Committee shall be to provide leadership and guidance to the SAC on all relevant matters and liaise with College officials and ACCSA staff as required to further the strategic direction of the ACCSA; and
- **8.25.** In addition to complying with the mandate of the Committee, the Executive Committee shall:
 - **a.** Review the day-to-day operations of the ACCSA and provide recommendations to the SAC as required;
 - **b.** Provide oversight regarding ACCSA services, and make recommendations to the Executive Director or SAC as required;
 - c. When urgent matters arise, or during times when holding an SAC meeting is not practicable or safe, act in place of the SAC to make interim decisions on behalf of the ACCSA;
 - **i.** Any such interim decisions made on behalf of the SAC must be disclosed and confirmed at the next meeting at the SAC.
 - **d.** Review on a minimum of an annual basis the performance of the Executive Director, and report on any related issues to the SAC;
 - **e.** Assess the effectiveness of the SAC and its Committees and make any required recommendations to the SAC;
 - **f.** Review the training regimen of SAC Members on a regular basis, and make recommendations for future training opportunities as required; and
 - **g.** Deliberate on sensitive or confidential matters, including but not limited to third-party contracts, relations with the College, and public relations issues, and provide appropriate information and recommendations to the SAC as required and expected.

Internal Review Committee

- **8.26.** The Internal Review Committee shall be comprised of; and
 - **a.** A minimum of 3 Members of the ACCSA, as appointed by the SAC;
 - **b.** 2 Members of the SAC, as appointed by the SAC;

- c. The ACCSA legal counsel, as an Ex-Officio Member; and
- **d.** The Executive Director or designate as an Ex-Officio Member.
- **8.27.** If any voting member of this Committee declares a conflict of interest or feels that they cannot suitably serve on this Committee, they shall resign from the Committee, and the SAC shall fill the vacancy by appointment.
 - **a.** If in the case of Members of the SAC, there are no suitable candidates from the remaining SAC Members to serve on this Committee, the remaining members of the Committee shall be deemed sufficient to act on behalf of the Committee, provided a minimum of fifty percent (50%) of Committee members are in attendance.

- **8.28.** The mandate of the Internal Review Committee is to maintain and enforce the framework laid out in these Bylaws to review and investigate issues and complaints related to the Conduct of elected SAC Members in an impartial and unbiased manner; and
- **8.29.** In addition to complying with the mandate of the Committee, the Internal Review Committee shall;
 - **a.** Determine an effective, accessible, and confidential mechanism for issues of SAC Member conduct to be brought forth to the Committee;
 - **b.** In cases of SAC Member conduct issues, provide recommendations for training opportunities that may improve future conduct;
 - **c.** Enforce and act in accordance with these Bylaws as they relate to SAC Member conduct, discipline, and accountability, and conducting hearings of the same; and
 - **d.** Review and provide recommendations to the SAC regarding any proposed changes to Bylaws and Policies that relate to SAC Member conduct, discipline, and accountability.

Ad-Hoc Committees

8.30. The SAC may establish, by resolution, a new Committee as an ad-hoc Committee as it determines necessary for the execution of the SAC's responsibilities.

- **8.31.** When the SAC is establishing an ad-hoc Committee, the following information must be provided in the resolution;
 - **a.** The composition of the Committee, including who is the Committee Chair;
 - **b.** The mandate or goals of the Committee; and
 - **c.** What delegated spending authority, if any, is provided to the Committee.
- **8.32.** In addition to their mandate and goals, Ad hoc Committees must comply with all minimum requirements expected of Committees in sections 8.02 through 8.10.;
- **8.33.** Unless otherwise stipulated, all ad-hoc committees shall expire on April 30th of each year; and
- **8.34.** The SAC may dissolve or amend the terms of any ad-hoc Committee by resolution at any time.

Bylaw 9. Elections

- **9.01.** Two General Elections shall be held, with one in the Winter Semester and one in the Fall Semester;
- **9.02.** The general Membership shall elect all SAC members, except for positions contested by a single individual, which shall be acclaimed;
- **9.03.** If deemed necessary by the SAC, a By-election shall be held in the Winter or Fall Semester;
- **9.04.** All SAC positions that remain vacant following a General Election shall be contested in a By-election, with the exception of circumstances as set out in section 9.05.;
- **9.05.** If there is a failure to elect a single SAC member during the General Election, at least three (3) SAC members holding office immediately before the General Election may continue in their office until successors are elected in the By-election or General Election;
- **9.06.** If there is a failure to elect enough SAC members to meet quorum, the elected SAC members may appoint one (1) or more additional SAC Members in order to reach quorum, who shall hold office for one (1) term;
- **9.07.** The Executive Director or designated staff member shall serve as the Election Chair, overseeing the General Election, By-election and referenda in accordance with the ACCSA election policies; and
 - **a.** The Election Chair shall provide the SAC with a post-election report summarizing key events and lessons from each election.
- **9.08.** The Executive Director shall appoint one (1) Vice Election Chair to assist the Election Chair in overseeing the General Election and By-election.

Bylaw 10. Representative Appointments & Executive Interim Appointments

- **10.01.** In the case that any executive position(s) are not filled during the general election held in the Winter semester, the SAC may interim appoint a current elected SAC member to this position(s) in the way of a majority vote of the SAC;
 - **a.** The SAC shall decide to remove any **interim** executive at any time by a majority vote except where the interim is deemed to have assumed the position as outlined in 10.02.
- **10.02.** In the case that a SAC Member is appointed to an Executive position immediately following the Winter semester general election, they may be allowed to assume that position for the remainder of the term pending the following terms being met;
 - **a.** The SAC Member was voted into a SAC position in the Winter semester election, whether contested or not;
 - **b.** The SAC Member has completed the required hours of employment between May 1st and August 31st;
 - i. President: Six hundred and sixteen (616) hours; or
 - ii. Vice President: Two hundred and fourteen (214) hours.
 - **c.** The decision is passed at the SAC meeting by a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote before the Fall General election nomination period begins.
- **10.03.** Any Representative vacancies post the Fall General election may be appointed by the SAC pending the following terms being met:
 - **d.** A current resume presented to the Executive Committee; and
 - **e.** Interview conducted by an SAC Executive and one (1) SAC designate, determined by a majority vote of the SAC.
- **10.04.** The appointment decision shall then be made by the SAC by a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote.

Bylaw 11. Board Accountability & Removal from Office

Accountability

- **11.01.** Notwithstanding any section of these Bylaws, all SAC Members or Members of the ACCSA shall attempt to resolve any accountability or conduct issue informally before escalating the issue as per these Bylaws; and
- **11.02.** All issues related to the conduct and accountability of SAC Members, or the subsequent disciplinary actions taken to address these issues, shall be brought forth to the Internal Review Committee. This includes, but is not limited to:
 - **a.** Poor performance, or insubordination;
 - **b.** Actions or inactions that disregard, violate, or otherwise grossly misrepresent the intent of ACCSA Bylaws, Policies, and resolutions;
 - c. Chronic absenteeism or neglect of duties as required of each SAC Member; and
 - **d.** Harassment or violence towards others.

Report Investigation

- **11.03.** A report of issues related to the conduct and accountability shall be made to the Chair of the Internal Review Committee;
 - **a.** In cases where the disciplinary issues to be reported directly involve the Chair of the Internal Review Committee, a report shall be made to the President;
- **11.04.** Once a complaint is received by the Chair of the Internal Review Committee, they shall make all reasonable efforts to ensure the validity and severeness of the complaint;
- **11.05.** If, in the view of the Chair of the Internal Review Committee, the alleged issue is serious enough to potentially cause harm to the SAC Member or others if not addressed immediately, the Chair shall have the authority to immediately suspend said SAC Member from their office until such time that a full investigation can be conducted by the Internal Review Committee and a recommendation be made to the SAC; and

- **11.06.** If, after an investigation, the Internal Review Committee recommends that disciplinary action is necessary, the following options are available to the Committee:
 - **a.** A verbal warning outlining a summary of the issue requiring disciplinary action, and any recommended corrective actions;
 - **b.** A written reprimand outlining a summary of the issue requiring a disciplinary action where a verbal warning does not suffice, and any recommended corrective actions; and
 - **c.** A suspension from their SAC office for a disciplinary issue where a written warning does not suffice, for a minimum of 1 week, to a maximum of the remainder of the term.

Disciplinary Action

- **11.07.** For verbal warnings and written reprimands recommended by the Internal Review Committee, the Chair of the Internal Review Committee shall have the authority to issue these disciplinary actions. A record of the decision and findings shall be kept on file for a minimum of 2 years by the ACCSA and will be forwarded to the Chair of the SAC for information; and
- **11.08.** For suspensions recommended by the Internal Review Committee, the recommendation shall be issued to the Chair of the SAC, who shall include the recommendation in the next available SAC Meeting.
 - **a.** A two-thirds (2/3) vote of the SAC members present at the SAC meeting shall be required to approve a suspension.
 - **b.** Notice of intention to pass such a motion at a meeting of the SAC must be given as set out in section 6.05.

Appeals

- **11.09.** All appeals to accountability decisions made by the Internal Review Committee shall be made to the SAC;
 - **a.** Appeals must be filed within thirty (30) days of the day the Internal Review Committee decision is made.
- **11.10.** The SAC, after hearing the appeal, has the following options:
 - **a.** Order a new proceeding before the Internal Review Committee;

- **b.** dismiss the appeal; or
- **c.** A two-thirds (2/3) vote of the SAC members present at the SAC meeting shall be required to order a new proceeding or to dismiss an appeal.

Termination of Office

- **11.11.** The office of a SAC member shall be vacated immediately, without opportunity for appeal, if; and
 - **a.** the SAC Member resigns office by written notice to the Chair;
 - **b.** the SAC Member dies or becomes bankrupt;
 - **c.** the SAC Member is found to be incapable of managing property by a court under Manitoba law;
 - **d.** A SAC Member fails to maintain a G.P.A. of 2.0 or higher;
 - **e.** A SAC Member is absent from three (3) consecutive SAC Committee or General Meetings; or
 - **f.** A SAC Member is absent from a total of five (5) SAC Committee or General Meetings.
- **11.12.** In a meeting of the Members, a SAC member may be removed before the expiration of the term of office, for cause, on a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of Members present;
 - **a.** Notice of intention to pass such a motion at a meeting of the Members must be given as set out in section 6.05.

Bylaw 12. Conflict of Interest

12.01. A conflict of interest refers to a situation in which private interests or personal considerations may affect the judgment of a SAC member in acting in the best interests of the ACCSA.

Disclosure

- **12.02.** A SAC member shall disclose a conflict of interest where that SAC member;
 - **a.** Is party to a material contract or transaction, or proposed material contract or transaction with the ACCSA;
 - **b.** Has a material interest in any person who is a party to a material contract or transaction, or proposed material contract or transaction with the ACCSA; or
 - **c.** Holds an office in a separate organization such that their capacity to perform duties in the best interests of the ACCSA may be called into question.
- **12.03.** A SAC member shall disclose a conflict of interest to the SAC soon after becoming interested in the contract or transaction or proposed contract or transaction. The SAC member; and
 - **a.** Shall not attend any part of a meeting of the SAC during which the contract or transaction is discussed and shall not vote on any resolution in respect to the matter of interest unless required by the Act; and
 - **b.** Shall not attempt in any way before or during the meeting to influence the voting on the matter of interest.
- **12.04.** If no quorum exists for the purpose of voting on a resolution due to a SAC member's absence in accordance with section 12.03 (a), the remaining SAC members are deemed to constitute a quorum for the purposes of voting on the resolution.

Bylaw 13. Protection of Directors & Officers

- **13.01.** Every SAC member is expected to;
 - **a.** Act honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests of the ACCSA;
 - **b.** Exercise the care, diligence, and skill that a reasonably prudent person would exercise in comparable circumstances; and
 - **c.** Comply with ACCSA articles, Bylaws, Policies, Board Manual, the Act, and the law.
- **13.02.** Provided that they have carried out their duties as outlined in section 12.01, no SAC member shall be held liable for;
 - **a.** Acts, receipts, neglects, or defaults of any other SAC member of the ACCSA; and
 - **b.** Loss, damage, or expense incurred through insufficiency or deficiency of any security into which any monies or belongings of the ACCSA have been invested.
- **13.03.** To the maximum extent permitted by the law and subject to the Act, the ACCSA shall indemnify and save harmless every current and former SAC member, and their respective heirs, administrators, and legal representatives, from and against; and
 - **a.** All costs, charges and expenses, including any amount paid to settle an action to satisfy a judgment, reasonably incurred by the SAC member in respect to any civil, criminal or administrative action or proceeding to which the SAC member is made a party by reason of having been a SAC member.
- **13.04.** The ACCSA may purchase and maintain directors' and officers' liability insurance.

Bylaw 14. Bylaw Amendments

Process

SAC

- **14.01.** Any SAC member may propose an addition, amendment, or abolishment of a section of the Bylaw to the SAC. The process shall be as follows:
 - **a.** A document containing the proposal of a Bylaw amendment, including any supporting materials, shall be forwarded to the Chair of the SAC;
 - **b.** The proposed amendment, along with comments from the ACCSA legal counsel, shall be forwarded to the SAC at least one (1) regular meeting prior to voting on the proposal;
 - c. The SAC shall vote on the proposed change at its next regularly scheduled meeting following notification, with a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of the SAC required to affirm the motion;
 - **d.** Upon affirmation of the proposed amendment by the SAC, Members shall vote on the proposed change at the next scheduled AGM;
 - **e.** The Bylaw addition, amendment or abolishment shall come into effect upon receiving a Simple majority vote of the Members at the AGM; and
 - **f.** The vote must be on a motion to amend the Bylaw, worded in the affirmative.

Referendum

- **14.02.** The addition, amendment or abolishment of a Bylaw may occur through a referendum. The process shall be as follows:
 - **a.** A petition of the Members shall be presented to the Chair of the SAC;
 - **b.** The petition must be clearly worded, stating the proposed Bylaw change;
 - **c.** The petition must contain the printed names, valid student numbers and signatures of ten (10) percent of its Members, as validated by the Chair of the SAC;
 - **d.** A referendum shall be conducted by the Election Chair in accordance with the rules set out in the ACCSA election policy;

- **e.** The referendum shall be considered valid if a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Members affirms the proposed change, where at least ten (10) percent of the Members vote; and
- **f.** Upon affirmation by referendum, the proposed amendment shall be read into the minutes of the next SAC meeting and shall come into effect upon adjournment of that meeting, or on the date specified in the amendment.

Bylaw 15. Corporate Office & Seal

- **15.01.** The head office of the ACCSA shall be in the City of Brandon, in the Province of Manitoba; and
- **15.02.** The seal of the ACCSA shall be in such form as the SAC may determine and shall contain the words, "Assiniboine Community College Students' Association".

Bylaw 16. Financial Matters

Signing Authority

- **16.01.** Deeds, transfers, assignments, contracts, obligations and other instruments in writing requiring execution by the ACCSA must be signed by one (1) executive and one (1) staff member;
 - **a.** In the absence of sufficient SAC members, the Executive Director or designate may be granted sole signing authority;
 - **b.** Any person authorized to sign any document may affix the corporate seal to the document; and
 - **c.** Any SAC Member or the Executive Director may certify a copy of any instrument, resolution, Bylaw, or another document of the ACCSA to be a true copy thereof.

Auditor

- **16.02.** An auditor shall be confirmed at each AGM.
 - **a.** The auditor shall conduct an audit of the ACCSA accounting records following the end of each fiscal year, and at other times if so, directed by the ACCSA; and
 - **b.** The auditor shall make a report of the annual audit to the Members and the SAC at each AGM.

Borrowing

- **16.03.** The SAC, from time to time, by resolution shall designate the bank in which the money, bonds or other securities of the Corporation shall be placed for safekeeping;
- **16.04.** The SAC shall have the power to borrow any amount of money up to and including the sum of ten thousand dollars (\$10,000) and shall have the power to pledge or encumber any of the assets of the ACCSA for this purpose; and
- **16.05.** The SAC shall not have the power to borrow any sum in excess of ten thousand dollars (\$10,000) unless approved at a Special or General meeting of the ACCSA.

Purchasing

- **16.06.** Any ACCSA purchases under five hundred dollars (\$500) must be approved by an ACCSA staff member (or an ACCSA Executive if ACCSA staff members are not present);
- **16.07.** Any ACCSA purchases between five hundred dollars (\$500) and three thousand dollars (\$3000) must be approved by the Executive Council and an ACCSA staff member; and
- **16.08.** Any ACCSA purchases over three thousand dollars (\$3000) must be approved by the full SAC. If the full SAC has not yet been elected, the Executive Council may approve these purchases.

Fiscal Year

16.09. The ACCSA's fiscal year shall be from July 1 to June 30.

Bylaw 17. Policies

- **17.01.** The ACCSA may establish policy from time to time;
- **17.02.** Policy shall be established by the SAC;
- **17.03.** All policies shall be adopted, amended, or rescinded by a simple majority vote of the SAC; and
- 17.04. All policies of the ACCSA shall be maintained in the ACCSA Policy Manual.